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Strong winds and driving rain are probably the worst conditions for playing golf in.  Despite this the game has been played in Caithness and the north Sutherland coast for more than 100 years.  Within Caithness golf was played at Lybster, Wick,                  John O’Groats, Dunnet, Thurso and Reay.  Outside the county reference has been made of golf being played at Melvich and Bettyhill.  Also within each district there appears to have been smaller areas of play with possibly only a few holes.  Within the Thurso area records show that Dunnet was the main course while smaller courses were at Brims, Gallow Hill/Wolfburn and at the riverside.  It is obvious that a relatively large number of people played golf in those earily days in and around Thurso.  It is easy to understand therefore why some organisation was needed and there was a desire to form a golf club.
It is interesting to note that of the present 500 plus golf clubs in Scotland 163 were established in the 1880s and 1890s.

It is therefore not surprising that a meeting of Thurso and district golfers was called for in the Royal Hotel on the 15th June 1893.  The Rev. Mr Gillieson, Olrig was called to the chair and Mr Sinclair McDonald (architect) of Thurso was appointed interim clerk.

Mr Torrance (Castletown) moved that a golf club be formed.  Dr Durran (Castletown) in seconding the motion, referred to the fact that golf had become one of the most popular games of the day and it was a most honourable and healthy one, affording pleasurable recreation and was not connected with vice.  He thought it should be encouraged as it would be an inducement to tourists to visit the area.
The motion was carried unanimously and so the Thurso Golf Club was born, but only after some discussion regarding the name, again a Castletown gentleman proposed the name which was unanimously agreed upon.

It was also agreed that while smaller courses in the area of Thurso might be used for private practice, the main play and competitions would take place at the Dunnet links.  The annual subscription for members was set at 5 shillings (25 new pence).
So began the first 100 years of the Thurso Golf Club, playing on the most northerly golf course on the Scottish mainland, first at Dunnet and then at Thurso.

On completion of the inaugural meeting, a Mrs Somerville of Wakefield, who was staying at the Royal Hotel, presented to the club a silver cup which stood on a vase of clubs and balls.  This was the first of many cups presented to the club over the years, unfortunately its present whereabouts is unknown.

The first competition of the newly founded club took place at the Dunnet links on Saturday the 17th June 1893, play commencing at 3.30pm.  

From the inception of the club, it was felt that the Dunnet links were rather far from Thurso.  Suggestions were being made as early as July 1893 that a course closer to Thurso should be sought.  An area at Brimms was looked at and nearer to Thurso the area around Gallow Hill, Howeburn and Wolfburn.  By the end of July 1893 permission was granted by Mr George MacDonald of Pennyland to the golf club to lay out a course in this area.

The laying out of a course in those early days was obviously much easier than at present as the first competition, for the Somerville Cup, took place on the 2nd September 1893 over the new course.  Twenty members took part and a Dr Asher and a Mr Donald Mackay tied for the first place on 110 while Dr Durran was next on 113 net.

Over the next few years competitive golf was played over both the Dunnet links and the course at Pennyland.  The latter course was known by various names during the years of its used, sometimes being called the Wolfburn, the Howeburn, or the Gallows Hill course.

At some time prior to 1900 the course in the Pennyland area was given up and negotiations started to acquire the land at Holburn Head for a course.  During 1900 a course at Holburn Head was set out and golf was played there until 1903.  Dunnet, however, was still the main course.
Towards the end of 1905 a new era commenced for the golf club with the Thurso Town Council taking an interest in obtaining a course nearer to the town.  The council suggested that a meeting take place with a view to acquiring land for a golf course.

On the  19TH February 1906 a meeting of the club committee with the town council exchanged views on ground near the town, best suited for forming a golf course.  It was decided that the three “parks” on Ormlie farm surrounding and adjacent to Dunbar’s Hospital were considered most suitable.  At the annual general meeting of the club in April 1906 a letter was submitted from Mr D H Moore of Ormlie farm stating the terms on which the three fields adjacent to Dunbar’s Hospital could be rented to the committee of management to secure the ground in question for a golf course and to have it laid out and ready for play as soon as possible.

Rapid progress was obviously made because Mr Moore complained to the committee that in breach of the tenancy agreement, three players were accompanied by a dog on the 21st May 1906.
Even in those days the Thurso Town Council were helpful in the establishment and funding of the new course.  It had been agreed at an early date in the negotiations that the council would meet some of the expense incurred in the laying out of the Ormlie course and in buying necessary equipment.  At the annual general meeting in April 1907 a vote of thanks was unanimously passed to the Thurso Town Council for the donation of the handsome sum of £28-3/-, no mean sum when one considers that the total expenditure of the club for the year ending March 1906 was £11-18s-6d and that included the greenkeepers' pay.  In addition the old weighing machine house had been given to the club and set up as a shelter on the course, by the council, completely free of charge.

During the formative years of the club a group of dedicated members gradually built up and improved the course at Ormlie and maintained the course at Dunnet.  Due to the popularity of the game and because of the course improvements membership was increasing steadily.  It is recorded that during the club year April 1906 to April 1907 membership increased from 53 to 141, the new members being 66 gentlemen and 24 ladies.
The prosperity of the club continued until the advent of World War 1 when most of the male membership left for active service and the course was closed for the duration.

Not until May 1919 did a meeting take place to reconstitute the club.  Again it is noted that those instrumental in reorganising the club were the hard core of pre-war members who had fortunately returned home.  Both the Ormlie course and the Dunnet course were repaired for the 1919 season and play got under way first to establish handicaps after the submission of three cards and then to commence competitions.

Renewal of the lease for the Ormlie course was also sought from the Ulbster estates.  In addition the club asked for a lease on the field directly south of Dunbar’s Hospital and adjacent to the existing course to increase the total length of the course.

In June 1919 Sir Archibald Sinclair of Ulbster granted the renewal and the lease of the additional ground at a nominal rent as from Whitsunday 1920.
Golfing rights over the Dunnet course were also renewed in 1919 by Admiral E A Sinclair of Freswick.

It should be noted that from the inception of the club the Sinclair family have been staunch supporters of golf both at Thurso and Wick.  Each generation, the head of the family has agreed to be President of the Golf Club since 1893.
Advice for the layout of the extended Ormlie course was obtained from Mr Sutherland, secretary of the Royal Dornoch Golf Club.  With a few minor alterations his report was unanimously accepted by the Thurso committee.  Work got underway to lay out the course and get it into good playing condition for the proposed opening on the first Monday in May 1920.  Major changes were under way to improve golf in the area and to encourage people to play the game.  To aid this, ladies were elected to the main committee of the club at the AGM of 1920.  They were Mrs Malcolm, Miss Black and a Miss Bannatyne.  A move was also made to obtain a club house, albeit a temporary one, as funds were short.  In May 1920 a Nissen hut was obtained and arrangements were made for its removal to Ormlie and its erection at a total cost of £35-10/- plus carriage.
To improve the funds of the club an agreement was reached between the golf club and the tennis club to hold a “grand bazaar” at sometime during the winter of 1920-1921.  It is incredible that the golf club’s net share of the proceeds amounted to £588-2s-10d.

To mark the reconstituting of the club Sir Archibald Sinclair, president of the club, presented a silver cup, the Ulbster cup, to be played for under rules arranged by the club.  The only stipulation was that the cup should not be won outright in a single season.  For the first year the committee decided to have a simple knock out competition under match play rules for gentlemen players.

With the increase in golfing activity in the north of Scotland an invitation to join the northern branch of the Scottish Golf Union was extended to the Thurso club.  It was unanimously agreed to accept and the club became a member in 1921.

During 1921 a delegation from Castletown headed by Dr McGregor met with the golf club committee to discuss the future of the Dunnet course.  After an exchange of views it was decided to hand over the course to the golfers of Castletown and district.  By mid 1921 agreement had been reached and the Dunnet Bay Golf Club was formed to take over the Dunnet course.  However the Thurso Golf Club retained the right to play inter club matches over the Dunnet course provided sufficient notice was given.
With the Ormlie course now established as the home of Thurso Golf Club a more formalised system was set up at the 1922 AGM.  The main management committee of gentlemen only was formed and it was resolved that a ladies section be formed with a lady captain, lady secretary and a committee of ladies to organise their own competitions.
Subscriptions and green fees were also reviewed and set at:-

Gentlemen




12/6

Ladies and Gentlemen:


7/6

Students




5/-

Apprentices under 18


5/-

Visitors




1/6 per day, 3/6 per week

Over the next few years improvements to the Ormlie course continued and were a constant drain on finances.  However, although the club was always solvent, money was in short supply and the ladies of the club were frequently requested to hold bazaar, dances and afternoon tea to raise funds.

Following the various course improvements, accurate measurement of each hole was made and approved by the Northern Golf Union in October 1926.  The table of the measurements below is extracted from the 1926 club records.

Hole

Length
Std, par.
Difference plus
cf average minus

1

440 yds
5

5


0

2

340 yds
4

0


0

3

285 yds
4

0


55

4

210 yds
4

0


130

5

320 yds
4

0


20

6

280 yds
4

0


60
7

315 yds
4

0


25

8

106 yds
3

0


24

9

360 yds
4

20


0

Total 18
5312 yds
72

50


688

Standard par

72

Length adjustment

-2

Additional course value
1

Standard Scratch Score
71

Over the years since the inauguration in 1893 a large number of prizes in the form of cups and medals had been donated to the club.  These were played for annually by various types of competition.  However it was not until 1927 that club championship matches were introduced in the form of stroke play over 36 holes in one day and only if fourteen or more players entered for it.  The first club championship was played on the 3rd September 1927 and was won by a Mr J Macdonald.

One benefit of the improved course was apparently the improvement in play of the Thurso golfers.  In previous years few of the inter club matches had been won by the club, whereas from 1928 Thurso were beginning to dominate these games.

Although progress was being made in all aspects of golf at Thurso it was not always without some aggravation.  In 1929 one of the main supporters of the club, Mr Wm Brimms, a past captain, felt that he had been slighted by the committee when he did not receive notice of the annual general meeting.  Despite a written apology he eventually resigned from the club and demanded the return of his greens roller or some compensation.
More significantly, the first constitution of the club was drafted out in 1929 and was adopted at the annual general meeting in January 1930.

During the 1920s and 1930s greenkeepers had been employed on a seasonal basis by the club.  Wages were initially set at 35/- for a 6 day week, working 8 hours per day.  Various greenkeepers were appointed with applicants coming from as far afield as Stonehaven and Stirling.  Eventually in 1933 a Mr J H Mcleod of Brora was appointed.  Like many keepers in those early days he was also a good golfer and only agreed to take the appointment, if he could sell equipment, give tuition and be given a weekly wage of £2 per week.  The club accepted these conditions and became the proud possessors of a professional.

Mr Mcleod was obviously a greenkeeper with talent as he made many improvements to the course with little instruction from the greens committee.  He was retained by the club until called up for active service in September 1939.

His departure from the club obviously had a great effect on the maintenance of the course as it was found necessary to close if for the year in mid September 1939.  Following the appointment of Mr J Bain, Thurso as the new greenkeeper in March 1940 the course was opened for play again in April.

Despite the difficulties imposed by the war the playing of golf in Caithness continued but at club level only.  All inter club matches were suspended until after the war.

The shortage of money, due to the reduction in membership and the lack of a qualified greenkeeper limited the playing season to the six months from April to September.  Even the services of some naval ratings could not stop the decline of the course.  During 1942 the Department of Agriculture decided that golf courses through the country should be used for cultivation of crops.  The Thurso course did not escape this order and the first two fairways plus the first green were ploughed up.  This seemed to be the last straw because at the annual general meeting in May 1943 it was decided to close the course for the duration of the war.

In February 1946 a meeting was convened to organise fund raising to enable the course to be made fit for play to commence once more.  A further meeting took place in March to decide on employing a greenkeeper and announce that a total of £78-13s-1d had been raised for the club funds from a dance and whist drive.  It was also decided to hold a general meeting in April to elect office bearers.  Additionally it was decided that 2 of the 5 applicants for the greenkeeper vacancy be interviewed and to try to secure the services of 4 German prisoners of war to work on the course.
By March 1947 the course and financial situation had improved but an application had to be made to the Department of Agriculture to derequisition the course before its return to full use.  This was granted except for the first and second holes.

Despite the decrease in membership, 51 in March 1948, the official opening of the course was set for April 1948.

Reconstruction of the course was also considered at this time and plans were drawn up for a new layout using most of the original Ormlie course and extending into the adjoining lands of Bogswa owned by the Thurso Town Council.  It was realised that the local rubbish tip would be an amenity problem difficult to surmount.

Meetings with the town improvement association had also been taking place during this period which culminated in the gift of £100 for further improvements that the club decided to make.

The club was now in a reasonably good financial position and the Town Council had given permission to use part of their land at Bogswa for initally setting out two holes.  These replaced the two adjacent to Dunbar’s Hospital which had still not been derequisitioned.
Now that the club was in a more stable financial position thoughts of a new club house were in members minds.  Two huts were looked at in March 1952 and it was decided to purchase one from SCWS in Wick for £145.  An additional sum of £100 was required for cartage, foundations and erection.  The old Nissen hut was then used as an equipment store.

During the years since the end of the war, various letters and demands had been sent to the Department of Agriculture in Edinburgh for compensation for the loss of the original 1st and 2nd holes.  All that had been asked for was some recompense for laying out the new holes on the ground given by the council.  Eventually after first refusing any liability the Department of Agriculture offered the club £95 in 1954.

As construction work got under way at Dounreay the influx of workers included a number of golfers who increased the membership considerably.  By 1956 there were sufficient to warrant changing the club competition day from Thursday afternoon to Saturday.  Also the question of Sunday golf was raised again, almost an annual event since the end of the war.  However because of the restriction in playing time for the Dounreay workers M R B Brownlee requested that the committee reinvestigate the possibility. It was agreed that permission for Sunday golf be sought from Lord Thurso, as the landlord of part of the course.  This request was turned down by the Hon R M Sinclair owing to the religious feelings of the club’s covenant on the Heathfield lands (the present 14th, 15th and 16th area).
In October 1958 Mr R H Allardice reported to the management committee that the Dounreay Sports and Social Club had been offered the lease of the old golf course at Reay from the Sandside estates.  As a committee member of the Dounreay Golf Association he had been asked to find out the views of the Thurso Golf Club on the possibility of rehabilitating the course.  After some discussion it was decided to inspect the site on the 2nd November.  By February 1959 an approach had been made to the Atomic Energy Authority for capital to resurrect the Reay course.  Sir Donald Perrot AEA Member for Finance, agreed that help in kind by DERE would be readily available but no money could be given.  Members of the Thurso Golf Club and of the Dounreay Golf Association with a great deal of help from Dounreay reconstructed the course and play resumed at Reay in late 1961, albeit on 9 holes.  By 1962 the course was in a fair state and at the Thurso AGM a motion to hold a meeting in Reay to reconstitute the Reay Golf Club was carried.
While the Reay project continued the Thurso course had not been forgotten.  In September 1960 a lengthy discussion took place regarding extension of the course.  It was finally decided to walk over the area of the course to explore the possibilities.  Owing to the financial position  at the time no action was taken and the matter was put in abeyance.  The subject was reopened in June 1962 and steps were taken to ascertain the ownership of the ground to the south of the fifth fairway (the area of the present 1st to the 9th).
Progress in obtaining additional land for the course extension was slow but eventually in 1963 some land was leased from the Thurso Town Council.  The land available surrounded the local refuse tip which for a number of years had caused quite a pollution problem.  Although the council were spending a large amount of money trying to tidy up the tip the only real solution as far as the golf club was concerned was to find another suitable dump site.

Despite this problem the club went ahead in preparing three new fairways and greens, intending further extensions at a later date.  By October 1964 the three new holes were playable and a fourth hole was ready for play by December.

It was also learned in December 1964 that the town rubbish dump would be phased out and a new site sought, which meant that the general amenity of the course would be greatly improved.  The decision was therefore taken to go ahead with the full course extension and an additional four holes were prepared for the 1965 season.  It was not until June 1969 that the council managed to find another site and stop using the original dump, much to the relief of the golfers.
The first competition over the new holes were played on Sunday 24th September although the 1st, 17th and 18th holes could not be used and access to the holes on the council land could not be via the original area of the course.  Sunday golf and access was still denied by the agricultural tenant of this part of the course.

Slowly the extension of the course was taking place and by April 1966 the full 18 holes were ready for play.  However the problems encountered over the years with the co-tenancy of the 1st, 17th and 18th came to a head in 1967.  After many years of aggravation over the live stock, including a bull and no Sunday golf, a determined effort was made to have the club as sole tenancies of this area of the course.  Some hard negotiations went on during the year and eventually agreement was reached with the Hon R Sinclair and the tenant farmer of the 1st, 17th and 18th.  The result was that the club became the sole tenants of this area.  The 2nd, 3rd and 4th holes had also been given up but 15 holes had been laid out on the council lands of Bogswa and Newlands of Geise.

The following year, 1968, total membership was at 148 and it was probably the most successful in the clubs history up to that year.  Helped by good weather a full range of 18 hole competitions were held during the summer.  Also for the first time competitive golf was played throughout the winter months.
Now that the club seemed to be in a more stable position, negotiations with the council began to obtain a long term lease of the course.  A formal letter was sent to the town council on the 26th September 1968 requesting a 25 year lease of the council lands.  Only then could various grants be obtained for building a new clubhouse and for further improvements to the course.

All of the efforts expended by a core of workers over the years was beginning to pay off.  The course was being improved steadily, with new tees, better greens, extra drainage and the clubhouse had been extended and refurbished.  Competitive golf was increasing as well as the membership which in 1969 was up to almost 200. To compensate for the increasing cost of the course upkeep, the subscriptions for 1970 were increased to £7 for men, £4 for ladies and £9 combined.
Negotiations for the long term lease really got underway in 1970 when solicitors were engaged by the club.  However in June of that year the Town Council intimated that they had encountered legal difficulties in granting such a lease.
By October at a meeting with Baillie Rosie prior to one with the Town Council it was suggested that municipalisation of the course might be a good thing.  He thought that something could be achieved perhaps in one of two ways.
a.
Take over the course and lease it to the club.

b.
Take over everything.

However the first thing to be done was to investigate the purchase of the land, on which the clubhouse and 1st, 17th and 18th were situated from the Ulbster estates.  Although in principal the council sub-committee had agreed to the take over the full council would have to discuss the proposal.  Also the town clerk stated at a later date that he was not in favour of giving a long term lease since he could see two problems.

a.
By law the council would have to charge a rent decided on by the district valuer (about £300).

b.
He did not think it advisable for the council to enter into a long term lease with an unincorporated body.

He suggested that the council give up the idea of a long term lease and look at the alternatives.

a.
Stay on a year by year lease.

b.
Think about municipalisation of everything.

Ratification of the municipalisation recommendation was given by the Town Council in early February 1971.  The Ulbster estates had also agreed to sell to the council their ground as long as it was only used for golf.  Negotiations and discussions continued throughout 1971 and municipalisation took place on 1st April 1972.
During 1971 W.S. (Bill) Stewart departed from Thurso to work in the south.  He had been the mainstay since 1956 in voluntary work around the course, in the clubhouse and in imparting his extensive knowledge of the game of golf to beginners.  He was a great loss to the club and would be sorely missed.  Before his departure he was made the first honorary member of the Thurso Golf Club.
To ensure that the municipalisation of the course continued in a smooth manner and that the golfers of Thurso were not inconvenienced a link committee was formed.  This consisted of three members of the Town Council and four members of the Golf Club.  Negotiations continued regarding the future policy for the course and in running the new club house.  The construction of the latter had been decided in February 1973 and was estimated to cost £20,000.  Discussions with the course consultants employed by the council resulted in agreement to site the building beside the 4th  fairway.  After many more discussions the new clubhouse was eventually ready for use in May 1975 and was officially opened on the 16th. 
By this time the newly formed District Council were beginning to realise that their expenditure on the course, clubhouse and stewards house was not going to be recouped easily.  By mid 1975 the council estimated that they had expended monies on behalf of the golf course on removal of the down dump, purchase of land, building the club house, approximately £23,000 on course improvements, 2 greenkeepers and a steward and stewardess.  The monies paid to the council in 1974 from subscriptions was in total £1,100 not entirely unexpected when the membership stood at:-

42 men, 2 ladies, 23 combined, 13 beginners, 54 juniors and juveniles, 2 OAPs and 10 associates.

By the end of 1975 expenditure on the course had been reduced to £12,300 against an income of £4,150.  The need for higher subscriptions was obvious hence the link committee proposed rates for 1976 be increased to £19 for men, £13.50 for ladies and £25 for the combined.

To try to bring in more money the council proposed that the club house should not be for the exclusive use of the golf club, but should be a combined club for all sporting clubs in the town.  When this failed the club house was offered on a rental basis to anyone who tendered for it.  After some discussion with Councillor Fry the golf club agreed to tender, offering a rent of £3,300.  During the following months the club was given notice to quit the premises despite the offer of rental still being on the table.  A great deal of acrimony was manifest between the club and the District Council, but with the support of Mr R McLennan MP, Councillor J Fry and a great many residents of Thurso, the club survived the situation.
In the meantime Mr Peter Knight had on behalf of the golf club made application for the lease of ground adjacent to the Vetinery Lab, and for outline planning permission for a new club house.  Drawings for this were prepared and grant applications were to be made later.  It was not entirely unexpected that the planning committee turned down the application on the grounds that a facility already existed and that new premises would have a licence thus competing with the present club house.

So the saga continued until 1977 when the council proposed that the golf club should in principle take over the running of the course at a nominal rent.  The rent for the club house should be set at £2,500 for the first year and £3,000 for the second year.  As the membership had decreased since municipalisation it was felt that the maximum payable by the club would be about £1,500.

Despite the discussions continuing the District Council without warning advertised the course and club house for rent in the press.  This came as a shock to all and resulted in a public meeting chaired by Councillor W Swanson who deplored the council’s action.  The culmination of the meeting was the formation of a small committee of golf club supporters to meet the council and ask for the return of the course to the club.  Those elected to the committee were Lord Thurso, Mr D Dyer, Councillor W Swanson, Mr J Fry (Chairman Thurso Community Council), W Carberry (TGC captain) and B Hickey (TGC vice-captain).

A meeting of this committee with the District Council on the 15th January 1979 resulted in the council offering the course to the club.  They would pay the loan charges on the club house and let it to the club.  At a meeting between the club and the District Council on the 22nd January 1979 a complete reversal of all that had gone before took place.  The council actually offered the course and clubhouse to the club on a long term lease.  This was readily agreed to and accepted by the club.  By 1983 a revised lease was given to the club which was for a period of 21 years.  In 1989 while exploring the possibilities 
of obtaining grants, some sources required that a 20 year lease of premises would be required.  A request to the council to extend the lease resulted in a renewal for a 25 year period starting from 1st January 1990.

In all it had taken 10 years of hard bargaining and a great deal of effort by many office bearers and friends of the Golf Club to obtain from the council the long term lease first requested on the 26th September 1969.

At times it had seemed an impossible task to solve the problems and that nothing else could happen to affect the golfers of Thurso.  Needless to say it did in the form of a Nature Conservancy Council order designating the area of marsh in the middle of the course as a site of special scientific interest.  Attached to the order were 21 ‘must nots’ the most important to the club being the ones associated with drainage, water levels and tables.

While all the negotiations were taking place the club continued to improve the course in many ways including extra drainage, new tees and better greens.  As the course improved the standard of golf seemed to improve as well if handicaps are anything to go by two younger players even reached the scratch level.  Also membership started to increase and by the end of 1992 had reached on all time record of 394 in total.
So after all that has taken place in the last 100 years the Thurso Golf Club survives.  With some luck and good guidance, but mostly with the dedication and determination of the past members continued in the future members it should survive for another 100 years.
D M Wallace

March 1993
MAIN  CLUB  TROPHIES

DATE

NAME


DONOR

1893

Sumerville Cup

Mrs Somerville

1900

Gold Medal


Mr A M Kidd

1900

Henderson Cup

Mr D P Henderson of Stemster

1901

Spade Guinea

Sir R L Harmsworth MP

1903

Trophy Challenge Cup
Sheriff John Wilson

1914

Ormlie Cup


Mr Daniel Dunnet

1921

Ulbster Cup


Sir A Sinclair of Ulbster

1922

Shaw Gold Medal

?
1924

McVitie & Price Cup
McVitie & Price

1924

The Flutter Cup

Messrs Lionel Philips

1925

Ulbster Challenge

Sir A Sinclair of Ulbster

1926

Clyne Cup


?

1926

Mina Villa Rose Bowl
Dr Durran

1934

Freswick Cup

Admiral Alexander-Sinclair

1938

?   Cup


Mr D McLean

1938

The Boys Cup

Mr Storm

1947

Waterman Cup

Mr Waterman of Edinburgh

1958

Mowat Mug


J A S Mowat

1967

Scotscoup Trophy

W Arif
1970
 
Construction Cup

PFR Construction

1973

Sinclair Trophy

Lord Thurso

THURSO   GOLF   CLUB

Pre – 1993

	HOLE
	NAME
	GENTS
	LADIES

	
	
	YDS
	PAR
	STR
	YDS
	PAR
	STR

	1
	Hot Start
	406
	4
	3
	406
	5
	9

	2
	Crafty
	373
	4
	7
	366
	4
	7

	3
	Pentland View
	186
	3
	12
	179
	3
	11

	4
	Ace Hole
	514
	5
	1
	398
	5
	1

	5
	Paper Weight
	189
	3
	14
	170
	3
	17

	6
	Royal Flush
	353
	4
	10
	341
	4
	5

	7
	Hair O’ the Dog
	492
	5
	5
	372
	4
	5

	8
	Green Carpet
	270
	4
	17
	270
	4
	15

	9
	Nice N’Easy
	158

2941
	3
35
	15
	158
2660
	3
35
	13

	10
	Flyaway
	410
	4
	5
	410
	5
	8

	11
	Auld Croft
	365  
	4
	8
	357
	4
	2

	12
	Good Wood
	219
	3
	9
	190
	3
	6

	13
	The Ford
	274
	4
	11
	211
	4
	16

	14
	Wee Short
	148
	3
	18
	148
	3
	18

	15
	Dunbar
	354
	4
	13
	346
	4
	12

	16
	Tailor Made
	429
	4
	2
	429
	5
	10

	17
	High Risk
	372
	4
	6
	296
	4
	14

	18
	Way Home
	306
	4
	16
	301
	4
	4

	
	
	2877

5818
	34

69
	
	2688

5348
	36

71
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	HOLE
	NAME
	GENTS
	LADIES

	
	
	YDS
	PAR
	STR
	YDS
	PAR
	STR

	1
	Hot Start
	406
	4
	2
	406
	5
	9

	2
	Crafty
	373
	4
	4
	366
	4
	7

	3
	Pentland View
	186
	3
	10
	179
	3
	11

	4
	Ace Hole
	514
	5
	1
	398
	5
	1

	5
	Paper Weight
	189
	3
	14
	170
	3
	17

	6
	Royal Flush
	353
	4
	12
	341
	4
	5

	7
	Hair O’ the Dog
	492
	5
	8
	372
	4
	3

	8
	Green Carpet
	270
	4
	18
	270
	4
	15

	9
	Nice N’Easy
	158

2941
	3

35
	16
	158

2660
	3

35
	13

	10
	Flyaway
	410
	4
	7
	410
	5
	8

	11
	Auld Croft
	365  
	4
	7
	357
	4
	2

	12
	Good Wood
	219
	3
	3
	190
	3
	6

	13
	The Ford
	274
	4
	11
	211
	4
	16

	14
	Wee Short
	148
	3
	17
	148
	3
	18

	15
	Dunbar
	354
	4
	13
	346
	4
	12

	16
	Tailor Made
	429
	4
	1
	429
	5
	10

	17
	High Risk
	372
	4
	9
	296
	4
	14

	18
	Way Home
	306
	4
	15
	301
	4
	4

	
	
	2877

5818
	34

69
	
	2688

5348
	36

71
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